
OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION
MEETING FOR JULY 26, 2021

Present: Mayor Frank Bubenik, Council President Nancy Grimes, Councilor Bridget Brooks, 
Councilor Maria Reyes, Councilor Valerie Pratt, Councilor Cyndy Hillier

Absent:  Councilor Christen Sacco

Mayor Bubenik called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

1. Basalt Creek Parks and Recreation Plan Update.  

Parks and Recreation Director Ross Hoover and Parks Planning Manager Rich Mueller
presented on the Basalt Creek Parks and Recreation Plan. Director Hoover stated the concept
plan has been adopted for the Basalt Creek area and it is now time to develop a plan for parks in
the area. Manager Mueller stated the Parks and Recreation Master Plan suggested acquiring
10-20 acres of park space and addition land for greenways and nature parks. He stated the
purpose of the plan is to expand the community parks and recreation needs while addressing
needs of new residential and employment areas. Manager Mueller stated they have completed
developing acquisition criteria, public outreach, analyzing potential locations, a market study, 
and a proposed acquisition approach. Director Hoover spoke to next steps in the planning
process including the development of preliminary design options, continued public outreach and
engagement, refinement of the Park and Trail Design Program, and a draft Basalt Creek Parks
and Recreation plan. He spoke to potential funding options including bonds, levies, SDCs fees, 
grants, and Local Improvement Districts.  

Councilor Pratt asked how many acres Tualatin Community Park is. In addition, she asked if the
10-20 acres includes trails. Director Hoover stated it is unclear what is included at this point as
public outreach will drive what the needs are.  

Councilor Pratt asked about potential funding and any funding that is available now. Director
Hoover stated some potential sources of funding have been identified through the Metro Bond
Program. 

Council President Grimes asked if it is possible to borrow against future SDC’s for purchase of
land if there is an immediate need. She asked how parties who have land the city would need for
parks would go about connecting with the city. Director Hoover stated he expects through
ongoing discussions with the community that property owners with desired lands will come
forward. Director Hudson stated you can borrow against future SDC’s but there are restrictions
on timing.  

Council President Grimes asked if the canyon is county owned. Director Hoover stated the
county has acquired some of the land while preparing to build the Basalt Creek Parkway but
noted it is not near the canyon. 



Councilor Hillier asked if available resources for the area, both positive and negative, would be
presented for the community to hear. Director Hoover stated all of the information will be
available during community discussions.  

Councilor Brooks stated she appreciates the community engagement that has been done to
date. She asked how the community will be able to understand the area better since it is a
private area. Director Hoover stated photos of the area will be shown so the public can see the
canyon. He stated they are also working with residents to host onsite focus groups.  

Councilor Reyes would like to see more visuals of what the area looks like now and what it can
be.  

Mayor Bubenik asked if the acquisition of parks includes or excludes the amount of land a
developer uses for parks. Director Hoover stated it does not include developers land.  

Mayor Bubenik asked about the industrial areas and the small parks associated with those and
how they are developed and acquired. Director Hoover stated that will be done through the SDC
process where developers can request a credit in turn for developing those smaller parks.  

Mayor Bubenik expressed concerns with the cost of land in the area and the rising costs as time
goes on. Director Hoover stated staff is informed on the pricing on the area and they will
continue to move the process forward.  

2. American Rescue Plan Act Discussion. 

Director Hudson presented updates on the American Recuse Plan Act (ARPA) funding. He
presented a brief overview on ARPA funds available for individuals and families, businesses, 
education, and health care. Director Hudson spoke to eligible uses for state and local fiscal
recovery funds including responding to the public health emergency and negative economic
impacts, revenue loss, premium pay for essential workers, and water, sewer, and broadband
infrastructure. He stated determinations for eligibility for assistance include an experienced
negative impact from the pandemic, services in a Qualified Census Tract (QCT), unemployment
or food insecurity, and a negative economic impact on a population or group. Director Hudson
stated he met with neighboring communities and local partners where they discussed
Washington County’s Steering Committee’s principles and framework and their identified
investment areas for distribution of funds. He shared what neighboring communities such as
Beaverton, Forest Grove, Cornelius, Hillsboro, and Tigard have done to date. Director Hudson
spoke to the distribution of funds to the city. He noted the City is slated to receive $6,179,536, 
via two payments in July 2021 and July 2022. Director Hudson presented proposed guiding
principles for the distribution of funds including alignment with council vision and priorities, one -
time programs and projects, leveraging multiple funding sources, being innovate and strategic, 
seeking partnerships and collaborative solutions, and collaborating with local partners. He stated
proposed investment areas include infrastructure, support of community based organizations, 
assistance to households, small business and impacted industries programs, revenue
replacement, and coordination with local partners.  

Councilor Brooks would like to see infrastructure be prioritized and look into how funds can be
utilized towards climate action planning.  



Councilor Pratt would like to see a contingency fund set aside like the County is doing for
unforeseen circumstances. Director Hudson stated the city has until December 2024 to spend
the funds so there is plenty of time to be strategic and not rush into projects.  

Councilor Reyes would like to provide support to non-profits. She agreed with the proposed
investment areas. She asked if funds can be used for community gatherings. Director Hudson
stated a singular community event may likely be qualified but he will need to explore it further. 

Councilor Hillier wants to make sure the city identifies barriers to access and understands the
impacts to different community groups affected by the pandemic.  

Council President Grimes would like to focus on infrastructure, small business grants, a
contingency fund, and donations to non-profits. She would like to see some ongoing vaccination
clinics in the area and potentially working with non-profits to hold them. City Manager Lombos
stated Washington County Health Services will have a mobile vaccination clinic every Tuesday
at Atfalati Park and different locations within the city.  

Mayor Bubenik stated based off conversations with other cities, infrastructure and sticking to
their council priorities are top goals.  

Councilor Brooks would like to work with the Meals on Wheels program and getting them
running back in person.  

Adjournment

Mayor Bubenik adjourned the meeting at 6:57 p.m. 

Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

Frank Bubenik, Mayor

Signature:

Email:

Signature:

Email:

Nicole Morris

nmorris@tualatin. gov

Frank Bubenik

fbubenik@tualatin. gov

TUALATIN\twegscheid
https://na2.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA7gV4OuCtJsn401AMLR9ERBXtSGxRGTDl

TUALATIN\twegscheid
https://na2.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA7gV4OuCtJsn401AMLR9ERBXtSGxRGTDl



CC WS Minutes 7-26-21
Final Audit Report 2021- 08-11

Created: 2021- 08-10

By: Nicole Morris ( nmorris@tualatin. gov)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAA7gV4OuCtJsn401AMLR9ERBXtSGxRGTDl

CC WS Minutes 7-26-21" History
Document created by Nicole Morris (nmorris@tualatin.gov)
2021- 08- 10 - 4:57:54 PM GMT- IP address: 208. 71.205. 225

Document e-signed by Nicole Morris (nmorris@tualatin.gov)
Signature Date: 2021- 08-10 - 4:58:27 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 208. 71.205. 225

Document emailed to Frank Bubenik ( fbubenik@tualatin. gov) for signature

2021- 08- 10 - 4:58:29 PM GMT

Email viewed by Frank Bubenik (fbubenik@tualatin.gov)
2021- 08- 11 - 3:16:22 AM GMT- IP address: 45.41.142. 247

Document e-signed by Frank Bubenik (fbubenik@tualatin.gov)
Signature Date: 2021- 08-11 - 3:16:50 AM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 73.11.107. 105

Agreement completed.
2021- 08- 11 - 3:16:50 AM GMT



OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR JULY 26, 
2021

Present: Mayor Frank Bubenik, Council President Nancy Grimes, Councilor Bridget Brooks, 
Councilor Maria Reyes, Councilor Valerie Pratt, Councilor Cyndy Hillier

Absent:  Councilor Christen Sacco

Call to Order

Mayor Bubenik called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance

Moment of silence for those who have lost their lives to COVID-19

Announcements

1. Recognition of Public Works Director Jeff Fuchs

Councilor Pratt and Councilor Brooks read the proclamation commending Jeff Fuchs for his
service to the City of Tualatin.  

The Council thanked him for his service to Tualatin.  

Public Comment

Patricia Parson spoke on behalf of Tualatin Voices United regarding council term limits. She
encouraged the council to not use their authority to move the request forward and instead leave it
to the people of Tualatin.  

Consent Agenda

Motion to approve the consent agenda made by Council President Grimes, Seconded by Councilor
Brooks. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Bubenik, Council President Grimes, Councilor Brooks, Councilor Reyes, 
Councilor Pratt, Councilor Hillier
MOTION PASSED

1. Consideration of Approval of the Work Session and Regular Meeting Minutes of June 28, 2021

2. Consideration of Resolution No. 5563-21 Authorizing the City Manager to Sign an
Intergovernmental Agreement between Washington County and the City of Tualatin to Provide a
Mental Health Response Team Crisis Clinician

3. Consideration of Resolution No. 5566-21 Authorizing Personnel Services Updates for Non-
Represented Employees on Temporary Schedule A for FY 2020-2021



General Business

1. Consideration of Resolution No. 5564-21 Rescinding the State of Emergency Related to
COVID-19

City Manager Lombos stated the state of emergency has been in place since March 23, 2020. 
She stated she had three objectives during the time to keep the public and employees safe, 
follow guidelines from public health officials, and continue to provide services. City Manager
Lombos stated the City stayed true to the objectives during the time period and have kept the
city moving forward while taking care of the community. She stated during this transition into a
new and different normal it is an appropriate time to repeal the state of emergency. City
Manager Lombos stated the public must remain vigilant and listen to public health officials
moving forward.  

Councilor Brooks thanked City Manager Lombos for her leadership during this time.  

Councilor Pratt thanked city staff for stepping up and being flexible and insightful during this
time. 

Council President Grimes thanked staff for all they have endured over the last 15 months.  

Mayor Bubenik stated he wants to make sure the city continues to monitor the moratorium on
rents and possible evictions that may come from it.  

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 5564-21 rescinding the state of emergency related to COVID-19
made by Council President Grimes, Seconded by Councilor Pratt. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Bubenik, Council President Grimes, Councilor Brooks, Councilor Reyes, 
Councilor Pratt, Councilor Hillier
MOTION PASSED

Council Communications

Councilor Pratt stated she attended the Tualatin Sustainability Network meeting and the Tualatin
Police Community Police Foundation meeting. She spoke to the new COVID-19 variants and
encouraged everyone to get vaccinated.  

Councilor Brooks stated she attended the Washington County Coordinating Committee meeting
and the Policy Advisory Board meeting. She stated the Council Committee on Advisory
Appointments met and discussed the possible creation of a Diversity Equity and Inclusion Task
Force. The group will be bringing a proposal to Council soon. 

Councilor Hillier stated she missed the Clackamas County Business Alliance meeting but will be
following up on their discussions. She reiterated the city’s ban on fireworks for the public. She
encouraged neighbors to be respectful and responsible.  

Council President Grimes spoke to rethinking the wearing of masks indoors to help tamp down the
surge in variants.  

Mayor Bubenik stated he would like to send a letter in support of the Borland Free Clinic remaining
at its current location during its current permit review with Clackamas County. Council consensus
was reached in support of sending the letter. 



Mayor Bubenik stated National Night Out is coming up on August 3rd. He stated individuals can
sign their neighborhoods up on the city’s website.  

Mayor Bubenik stated he received questions from Clackamas County regarding the letter he sent
regarding permitting in the Stafford Area. He explained the letter was about notification regarding
changes occurring in Stafford that are not in line with the current vision.  

Mayor Bubenik stated many of the Clackamas Mayors are displeased with the Clackamas County
Local Implementation Plan (LIP). The local Mayors will meet with the Chair to discuss the services
that will be available.  

Mayor Bubenik stated he attended the Greater Portland Inc meeting, the dedication of the Jack
Broom tree, the Metro Mayors Consortium meeting, and the ribbon cutting at Tiffany Home
Designs. 

Adjournment

Mayor Bubenik adjourned the meeting at 7:56 p.m. 

Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

Frank Bubenik, Mayor

Signature:

Email:

Signature:

Email:

Nicole Morris

nmorris@tualatin. gov

Frank Bubenik

fbubenik@tualatin. gov

TUALATIN\twegscheid
https://na2.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAukml8QeOvr0zaCNp9VcXpBIc-Q1E22IB

TUALATIN\twegscheid
https://na2.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAukml8QeOvr0zaCNp9VcXpBIc-Q1E22IB



CC Minutes 7-26-21
Final Audit Report 2021- 08-11

Created: 2021- 08-10

By: Nicole Morris ( nmorris@tualatin. gov)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAukml8QeOvr0zaCNp9VcXpBIc- Q1E22IB

CC Minutes 7-26-21" History
Document created by Nicole Morris (nmorris@tualatin.gov)
2021- 08- 10 - 4:58:57 PM GMT- IP address: 208. 71.205. 225

Document e-signed by Nicole Morris (nmorris@tualatin.gov)
Signature Date: 2021- 08-10 - 4:59:24 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 208. 71.205. 225

Document emailed to Frank Bubenik ( fbubenik@tualatin. gov) for signature

2021- 08- 10 - 4:59:26 PM GMT

Email viewed by Frank Bubenik (fbubenik@tualatin.gov)
2021- 08- 11 - 3:15:57 AM GMT- IP address: 45.41.142. 47

Document e-signed by Frank Bubenik (fbubenik@tualatin.gov)
Signature Date: 2021- 08-11 - 3:16:15 AM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 73.11.107. 105

Agreement completed.
2021- 08- 11 - 3:16:15 AM GMT


	Meeting Records - Council - Work Session - Minutes - 7_26_2021
	Meeting Records - Council - Regular - Minutes - 7_26_2021



